
From: Scott Cooper
To: Emily Bremer
Subject: RE: IBR
Date: Friday, July 15, 2011 4:44:48 PM
Attachments: ANSI OSHA Letter 4-9-2008.pdf

Dear Emily,
 
Yes,  it was a pleasure to spend some time today talking and to have the opportunity
to walk through these issues.  

I will come up with a list of SDO folks that should be of help to you, and if you like, I
can facilitate the introduction. 
 
I have also attached the letter I mentioned that we sent to OSHA on the issue of
referencing updated standards. 
 
I look forward to further discussions, and thanks again for the opportunity to
participate in this project.
 
Best
Scott
 
Scott Cooper
 
Vice President
Government Relations and Public Policy
American National Standards Institute
1899 L St, NW, 11th Floor
Washington, DC 20036
Office: 202-331-3610
Cell: 413-687-1788
scooper@ansi.org

From: Emily Bremer [mailto:ebremer@acus.gov] 
Sent: Friday, July 15, 2011 1:04 PM
To: Scott Cooper
Subject: IBR
 
Mr. Cooper,
 
Thank you again for meeting with  me today.  I enjoyed our conversation and found it very
helpful.
 
As promised, attached is the report underlying ACUS Recommendation 78-4, “Federal
Agency Interaction with Private Standard-Setting Organizations in Health and Safety
Regulation.”  I’ve also attached the text of the recommendation itself. 
 
I would very interested to meet with folks from the standards setting organizations to discuss
the incorporation by reference project and hear their views.  Our website has some
background information on the project, as well as a description of its scope:

mailto:SCooper@ansi.org
mailto:EBremer@acus.gov
mailto:scooper@ansi.org



  


 


 
 
 
 
 
 
April 9,  2008 
 
The Hon. Edwin G. Foulke Jr. 
Assistant Secretary of Labor for Occupational Safety and Health 
U.S. Department of Labor 
200 Constitution Ave., NW 
Washington, DC 20210 
 
Dear Mr. Foulke: 
 
The American National Standards Institute, (ANSI), and many of its associates listed 
below, would like to comment on an initiative that the Occupational Safety and Health 
Administration (OSHA) has undertaken to update references to consensus standards that 
are incorporated into the regulatory language that OSHA uses to protect worker safety 
and health.  
 
ANSI, our members and our colleagues have consistently supported OSHA’s efforts to 
update references to national consensus standards that are incorporated into OSHA 
regulatory standards.  As you know, national consensus standards are developed by 
standards developing organizations (SDOs) through the input of experts based in both the 
United States and internationally.  In the US, SDOs that are accredited by ANSI must 
follow due process requirements that are characterized by transparency, openness, 
technical relevance, consensus and responsiveness to the needs of stakeholders (including 
a fair and impartial appeals process).  When ANSI approves national consensus standards 
as American National Standards (ANS), SDOs must reaffirm, revise or withdraw their 
standards at least every five years.  
 
National consensus standards are revised regularly because – among other reasons - 
advances in technology allow products to be made in ways that make them safer for those 
who use them.  Unfortunately, while national consensus standards are regularly revised to 
reflect new technologies and state-of-the-art industry practices, outdated references in 
OSHA rules fail to reflect such important updates. 
 
We are sympathetic to OSHA’s difficulty in matching its regulatory requirements to the 
latest version of national consensus standards.  Along with other organizations, we have 
been frustrated that the consensus standards cited in OSHA regulations are out of date – 
in some cases by several generations.  It is troubling that employers who purchase health 
and safety equipment based upon the most recent versions of national consensus 
standards may therefore be in technical violation of OSHA rules, as OSHA may reference 
an earlier version of the standard.  And in many cases, manufacturers may no longer 







produce products based on the earlier version, which makes subsequent citations for de 
minimus violations of published OSHA standards doubly frustrating.   
 
Rather than attempt to update national consensus standards (which are ratified under 
1910.2(g) as standards that have “been adopted and promulgated by a nationally 
recognized standards-producing organization”), OSHA’s  the Proposed Rule on Updating 
National Consensus Standards [Docket No: OSHA-2007-0044] eliminates the obligation 
of utilizing the due diligence of SDOs and proposes a default approach to a so-called 
“good design standard.” 
 
OSHA has not clarified in its proposed rule how such a standard would be recognized in 
the United States, nor has OSHA defined what it considers a baseline level of safety that 
such a standard must meet.  Thus while OSHA will look at standards for “good design 
criteria” they will not measure whether such “good design standards” are as protective as 
existing national consensus standards.  Employers who now face technical violations for 
exceeding published OSHA standards by using more current versions of national 
consensus standards, may now face unforeseen liabilities by using products based on a 
“good design standard” that fail to meet the level of protection now offered by the most 
recent versions of national consensus standards. 
 
We urge OSHA to abide by the Congressional mandate of Public Law 104-113, the 
National Technology Transfer and Advancement Act of 1995 (NTTAA), as described in 
OMB Circular A119.  This will help make certain national consensus standards are: 
(1) referenced in the mandatory text of  agency rules, (2) consistently applied and (3) 
regularly updated.  We believe that the complementary nature of national consensus 
standards and OSHA references to these standards result in the best level of protection for 
the American workforce.  And U.S. employers and workers trust this partnership. 
 
We do agree with OSHA that it needs to do a better job of updating references to the 
most recent versions of national consensus standards.  We would therefore propose that 
OSHA consider an alternative where the current (ie updated) version of any referenced 
national consensus standard be deemed to satisfy those OSHA regulations that refer to 
any earlier version of the same standard, provided that within 6 months of promulgation 
of the new national consensus standard, OSHA has not made a declaration disavowing its 
further use.   
 
We believe such a solution addresses all the concerns raised by OSHA in its original 
Proposal, and by those who have commented on that proposal: 
 


1) Standards need to be updated 
2) OSHA should preserve the right to decline to accept a revised standard if it feels 


that the revision does not improve the health and safety of the products 
referenced.  


3) Employers and workers need certainty that the products they use to protect those 
in the workplace meet the highest standards practicable. 


 







We would be pleased to comment further or to meet with you and our staff to discuss 
these issues of mutual concern. 
 
 
Scott Cooper 
VP – Policy & Government Affairs 
American National Standards Institute 
 
Jeff Grove 
VP- Global Policy & Industry Affairs 
ASTM International 
 
Daniel K. Shipp 
President 
ISEA 
 
Jim Shannon 
President 
NFPA 
 
June Ling 
Associate Executive Director 
ASME 
 
Ann Weeks 
VP-Government Affairs 
Underwriters Laboratories 
 
 
Joan Sterling 
Director – Government Relations 
Intertek 
 
Donald J. Hart 
President 
AIHA 
 
Spencer P. Grieco 
VP – Standards 
CSA America 
 
 







 
http://www.acus.gov/research/the-conference-current-projects/incorporation-by-reference/
 
The issues I’m researching include but are not limited to updating regulations that
incorporate extrinsic materials by reference and ensuring adequate access to such
incorporated materials, both during the rulemaking process and following promulgation of a
regulation.  I understand that different agencies and standard setting organizations have
different needs and have taken different approaches to these issues.  I’ve been interviewing
agency personnel to get a handle on the issues from their perspective, but it’s crucial that I
also understand and include in my report the perspectives of the various standard setting
organizations.
 
To that end, if you could help me put together a meeting with representatives from a few of
the organizations, I would be very appreciative.  We can host a meeting here at ACUS, or I
can come to another location if that’s more convenient.
 
If you need any more information from me, or have further suggestions for materials I should
consider in my research, please don’t hesitate to contact me.
 
Thank you again!
 
Best,
 
Emily Schleicher Bremer  |  Attorney Advisor

ADMINISTRATIVE CONFERENCE OF THE UNITED STATES
1120 20th St., NW Suite 706 South  .  Washington, DC 20036
(202) 480-2086  .  ebremer@acus.gov  .  www.acus.gov
 

http://www.acus.gov/research/the-conference-current-projects/incorporation-by-reference/
mailto:ebremer@acus.gov
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